LIFELONG LEARNING SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE (SPECIAL)

11 DECEMBER 2003

Chair: * Councillor Mitzi Green

Councillors: * Mrs Bath (4) * Lent * Miss Bednell * Janet

Miss Bednell * Janet Mote
Gate * Marie-Louise Nolan

Ismail * Osborn (2) Mary John

Voting Co-opted: (Voluntary Aided)

(Parent Governors)

* Denotes Member present

(2) and (4) Denote category of Reserve Member

† Denotes apologies received

PART I - RECOMMENDATIONS - NIL

PART II - MINUTES

102. <u>Attendance by Reserve Members:</u>

RESOLVED: To note the attendance at this meeting of the following duly appointed Reserve Members:-

Ordinary Member Reserve Member

Councillor Jean Lammiman Councillor Osborn Councillor John Nickolay Councillor Mrs Bath

103. <u>Declarations of Interest:</u>

RESOLVED: To note that there were no declarations of interests made by Members in relation to the business transacted at this meeting.

104. **Arrangement of Agenda:**

RESOLVED: That (1) item 10 'Review of the Recruitment and Retention Process for School Governors' be discussed informally at the rise of this meeting;

- (2) all items be considered with the press and public present;
- (3) in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the following item be admitted late to the agenda by virtue of the special circumstances and grounds for urgency listed below: -

Agenda Item: Special Circumstances/ Grounds for Urgency:

9. Proposed Schools Budget for 2004/2005

The information contained within the report was not available at the time of printing the main agenda.

To allow Members of the Sub-Committee to comment on the proposed schools budget and make references (if any) to the meeting of Cabinet on 16 December 2003, where a decision on the proposed schools budget would be made.

105. Minutes:

RESOLVED: That (1) the minutes of the meeting held on 7 October 2003, having been circulated, be taken as read;

(2) authority be given to the Chair to sign the minutes as a correct record following the meeting.

106. **Public Questions:**

RESOLVED: To note that no public questions were put at the meeting under the provisions of Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 8.

107. **Petitions:**

RESOLVED: To note that no petitions were received at the meeting under the provisions of Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 9.

108. **Deputations:**

RESOLVED: To note that no deputations were received at the meeting under the provisions of Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 10.

109. References from Council and Other Committees/Panels:

RESOLVED: To note that there were no references received from Council and / or other Committees.

110. Proposed Schools Budget for 2004 / 2005:

The Sub-Committee received the report of the Executive Director (People First) which Members of the Sub-Committee, along with Members of the Education Consultative Forum and the Schools Forum, had received a presentation on the evening before from the Education Financial Services Manager. The report outlined proposals for the Schools Budget 2004 / 2005, which the Authority is under an obligation to agree and notify to the Secretary of State by 31 December 2003.

A Member of the Sub-Committee commented that a handout of the presentation notes would have been useful. The Member also stated that the Education Financial Services Manager advised that aspects of the budget allocation were difficult to understand and the Member requested that they be drafted in more straightforward terms if this was the case. The Chair sympathised with both Members and officers in relation to the complexity of the education budget and requested that Members be sent a copy of the notes of the presentation for information.

Members discussed the following areas for concern in relation to the proposed Schools Budget for 2004 / 2005: -

- (i) that although Harrow's Schools Budget for 2004 / 2005, consistent with passing on the increase in school funding, is £103,770,000.00 (an increase of £6,311,000.00 6%), Members agreed that this was still insufficient. A Member stated that the increase did not address the fact that Harrow has been underfunded for many years and Harrow's baseline has always been low, which suggests that Harrow is being penalised for having successful schools.
- (ii) that Harrow's headteachers have advised that an increase of 8-9% is required to retain the status quo alone. The Sub-Committee agreed that it is important for Members of the Council to make strong representations to the Government and use political pressure to ensure that the Government and not Harrow's taxpayers support this deficit in finance.
- (iii) that the Government's indication that there will only be funding for one third of teachers moving on the upper pay spine to UPS 3. Members agreed that this was a cause for concern, as this will negatively impact on teacher recruitment and retention, particularly in high schools. A Member stated that this policy is at cross-purposes with delivering excellence in education.

Another Member of the Sub-Committee suggested that Members examine the financial burden on schools as a result of the remodelling of the school workforce, which forms part of the Government's Remodelling Agenda to meet the National Agreement on Teachers' Pay and Conditions. The Member referred the Sub-Committee to the Outturn Statement for 2002 / 2003, which highlighted ten schools that had £15,000.000 or less in their end of year balances and queried how they would cope with the remodelling.

Members requested information relating to the Outturn Statements for 2002 / 2003 and those projected for 2003 / 2004. Members were advised that the current detail of projected balances for 2003 / 2004 would not be available except in cases where schools had provided information as part of detailed work with the Education Finance Service. The Chair also requested that Members be provided with information on schools' identified use of their 2002 / 2003 balances committed for specific projects: how many of these there were and how the proposed budget would influence the

outcome of these projects (i.e. which projects would not now be completed).

The Sub-Committee agreed that Cabinet be requested to consider how schools that experienced financial difficulty, as a result of this budget, would be supported in terms of officer / adviser assistance to manage their budgetary position. Members agreed that it was important for the Authority to have support mechanisms in place before these schools were in real financial difficulty.

Members further discussed the four main cost pressures on the Schools Budget that were not included within the Medium Term Revenue Budget Strategy (Appendix 1 of the report). The Sub-Committee agreed that Cabinet be requested to respond as to how each of the cost pressures would be met by the £2,900,000.00 available, particularly the UPS 3 cost pressure.

Members discussed the three methods of support for schools in financial difficulty outlined in the report from the Department for Education and Skills guidance (DfES) "Supporting Schools in Financial Difficulty" and noted that one option was not available to the Authority and that the other two options were not satisfactory. A Member of the Sub-Committee stated that withdrawing funds from schools that had been managing their budgets well to give to schools with low cash reserves was not an appropriate remedy. Neither was asking for next year's budget early, as it would only intensify problems in relation to next year's budgetary provision. The Sub-Committee agreed that it was important to emphasise to Cabinet the inherent dangers in these methods of support.

RESOLVED: That (1) Cabinet be

- (i) requested to respond as to how each of the cost pressures outlined in the report would be met by the £2,900,000.00 available, particularly the UPS 3 cost pressure;
- (ii) requested to consider how schools that experienced financial difficulty, as a result of this budget, would be supported in terms of officer / adviser assistance to manage their budgetary position;
- (iii) made aware of the inherent dangers within the methods of support outlined in the DfES guidance document "Supporting Schools in Financial Difficulty".
- (2) Members be sent a copy of the notes of the presentation by the Education Financial Services Manager for information;
- (3) Members receive information available on the Outturn Statements for 2002 / 2003 and those projected for 2003 / 2004, specifically in relation to schools which have low reserves;
- (4) Members be provided with information in relation to how many special projects were identified in the Outturn Statement for 2002 / 2003 and how this new budget would influence the outcome of these projects.

111. Review of Recruitment and Retention Process for School Governors:

RESOLVED: That this item be discussed informally at the rise of the meeting (see Minute 104).

(Note: The meeting having commenced at 7.34 pm, closed at 8.15 pm)

(Signed) COUNCILLOR MITZI GREEN Chair